Fort Amsterdam

Fort Amsterdam had a long and peculiar history. In 1626 the Dutch West India Company directed Kryn Fredericksen to construct a fort at the tip of Manhattan Island. Fredericksen was instructed to build a substantial stone fortification following the specifications of the prototypical 17th century Dutch design. The painting depicts this fort as it was intended to look. Unfortunately, provided with only limited resources, he instead built a modest earthworks fort with a few simple structures inside. This is the fort depicted in the pencil sketches. In later years the fort, under English rule, was improved and came to look more like the depiction in the painting.

Fort Amsterdam was continually being repaired and modified. In 1638 alterations were made that included the facing of the northwest bastion with quarried stone and repairing the three remaining wooden bastions. From 1640 to 1645 a barracks, house and stone church were erected within the walls of the fort. In that same time period most of the earlier deteriorating buildings within the fort were removed. By the 1650’s the new Director General, Pieter Stuyvesant, ordered that fencing be built around the earthen perimeter walls to prevent rooting pigs from eroding the sod. In 1664, faced with an imminent English attack and a grossly underdeveloped fort to defend his city, Stuyvesant surrendered Manhattan.

After the British take over, Fort Amsterdam became Fort George. For several decades improvements to the fort were minimal and confined to basic repairs. In the mid 1750’s, however, Fort George was substantially upgraded to a full stone fort with surrounding defensive ditches and a massive semi-circular gun battery along the shore to its south. Interestingly, the original Dutch footprint still survived after more than a century. Ironically, improvements essentially completed the initial design proposed by the Dutch West India Company in 1626.

The Dutch/English fort was demolished in 1789 following the American Revolutionary War. Today the site is occupied by the US Customs House a National Historic Landmark building which houses the National Museum of the American Indian one of New York City's major tourist attractions.
